
MINNETONKA BEACH PLANNING COMMISSION 
 
Chair:     Council Liaison: 
Jeff Breazeale    Jennifer Halverson 
 
Members: 
Jeff Breazeale, Scott Gamble, Colleen Finnegan, Joe Steinfeld, Susan Swanson, Bridget Wortman 
   
Staff: 
Heidi Honey, City Administrator 

 

 
Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda  

Monday, September 29, 2025 ~ 7:00 PM 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – June 23, 2025 

5. PUBLIC HEARING 
5.1. Zoning Code Amendment – Section 5.5.4. Additional Specific Standards for Certain 

Accessory Uses 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

6.1. Short Term Rentals – Determine necessity to regulate 
 

7. OLD BUSINESS 
7.1. Tree Protection Ordinance Update from Work Group 
 

8. REPORTS  
8.1. Chair Report  
8.2. Commissioner reports 
8.3. Council Liaison 
8.4. Building Permit Report - Receive and File 

 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

 

  



Page 1 of 3              June 23, 2025 Planning Commission Minutes 

 

UNAPPROVED 
Minnetonka Beach Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

June 23, 2025 – 7 pm 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
Chair Breazeale called the meeting to order at 7 pm. 
 

2. Roll Call 
Present: Commissioners Breazeale, Finnegan, Gamble, Steinfeld, Swanson and Wortman; Council Liaison 
Halverson 
Absent: none 
Staff in attendance: City Administrator Heidi Honey   
 

3. Approve Agenda  
Gamble motion, Finnegan second to approve the June 23, 2025 meeting agenda. All ayes; motion passed.   
 

4. Approve Minutes 
4.1. Regular Planning Commission Meeting of May 19, 2025 

 
Steinfeld motion, Swanson second to approve the May 19, 2025 meeting minutes. All ayes; motion passed.  
 

5. Public Hearings 
5.1. Zoning Code Amendments - Tree Protection Ordinance 
The proposed ordinance amendments were reviewed by Planning and then Gamble presented the 
proposed amendments to City Council on June 16. Planning is now holding the public hearing and final 
discussion. The focus of the work has been technical language corrections, and they will work on 
simplifying the code in the future per Council direction.  
 
Breazeale opened the public hearing at 7:02 pm. Commissioners read an email submitted by Signe and 
Fred Koehler at 6:37 pm. Koehlers were present and did not speak during the public hearing.  

 
Breazeale closed the public hearing at 7:07 pm with no comments. 
 
Finnegan asked for a brief overview of what has happened over the past year. Breazeale gave a brief 
summary on the Tree Protection Ordinance review. He stated that City Council asked Planning to review 
the Tree Protection Ordinance. The work group reviewed it with resident input, talking with City Staff, 
reviewing other cities’ ordinances, and did a general check on how it’s working. Written feedback was 
solicited and received from residents via email regarding perceived issues with the ordinance. A 
community survey was developed based on that feedback. The survey had a 40% response rate from 91 
households. The survey data was analyzed. Survey data showed there was strong support for protection of 
heritage trees. For significant trees, the feedback was that coniferous tree regulations were too strict, 
standards on other significant trees may be too strict, and there was negative sentiment on cottonwoods. 
There was an identification of misunderstanding of the permitting process and the ordinance by some 
residents. The work group noted that coniferous trees identified as significant were too young (15 – 20 
years old).  They also noted that other cities had higher standards for identifying heritage and significant 
trees for rapid growing trees. They recommended identifying rapid growing trees as significant at a larger 
DBH. In consultation with the City Forester, he noted the importance of cottonwoods for soaking up 
moisture/runoff in lake areas. They noted eliminating permit fees for dead, diseased, and dying trees.  

2 of 12



Page 2 of 3              June 23, 2025 Planning Commission Minutes 

 

 
Breazeale stated the most significant proposed change is to treat coniferous trees the same as deciduous 
trees, and to differentiate between rapid growing and standard growing trees. This makes the definition of 
significant trees a higher bar/older trees. Another significant change is to measure all trees the same by 
DBH and not height. Arborvitae would be regulated as standard growing tree, where one stem of the 
cluster would be measured for DBH. This should eliminate concerns about arborvitae. Trees should be 30-
50 years old to be significant. The goal for the next steps is to compare it against City Code for 
redundancies, create charts to replace language for simplicity, and find ways to encourage plantings, 
possibly with the Park Commission.  
 
Breazeale stated that Koehlers had previously brought up questions about constitutionality. Honey 
summarized her discussion with the City attorney. She explained the nexus and proportionality which were 
brought up by Signe Koehler. The City attorney explained that court cases in other states or districts are 
not relevant to the City Code but in general he did not see any issues with proportionality or essential 
nexus in the tree protection ordinance. He stated the ordinance does a good job of explaining what trees 
are regulated and why. Proportionality refers to how well the fine/fee/consequence relates to the offense. 
The ordinance explains which trees it protects and why it protects them, and then it goes on to assign a 
penalty or remedy based on the number and size of trees (something measurable). This is what is meant 
by proportionality. Honey then stated that the essential nexus refers to if the consequence is connected to 
the offense. The ordinance has remedies that are directly related to tree removal which are relevant such 
as replacement requirements specific to the size or DBH of a tree. All remedies are in relation to the 
activity. If there was jail time for removing a tree, that consequence would be unrelated to the action. The 
attorney reviewed the code specific to these topics, and it does a very good job on those points.  
 
Breazeale stated the City council asked them to do a thorough job of obtaining feedback. He thinks they 
did a good job of that. The survey had a 40% response rate, which is quite high and a good sampling of the 
community. He went on to say that there may be a small group of residents who would like to control 
trees down to one inch, and some that think there should not be a tree ordinance. He thinks we got a good 
sampling of the community and specific feedback on what is “about right” regarding level of 
restrictiveness. They tried to address comments where people thought the ordinance was too restrictive. 
He went on to say there is a wide range of opinions, and they had to work toward a middle, to represent 
what the average resident feels, and to respond to that in the amendments. Breazeale thinks they did 
what was asked of them by the council and they represented the community. The other commissioners 
agreed with his comments.  
 
Gamble stated that he presented all the technical language changes to Council including no fee for 
diseased and dying tree removal permits. Council did not raise any concerns.  Gamble stated they will look 
at condensing the Code, comparing it with City Code for duplication, and work with the Park Commission 
on green initiatives (planting opportunities) if directed by Council.  
 
Commissioners then noted specific typos or edits: 
Page 21 Rapid Growing Tree, add “as” to read “as determined by the City forester”. Also add “as” for 
standard growth tree language.  
Add crabapple to standard growth tree list.  
Page 8 of packet, 8.1.2. Change tree to plural “trees”. 
Page 127 – Replace all “Caliper” to “DBH”. 
No changes to proposed fee schedule. 
 
The work program and reports to council mentioned the recommendation to work on the simplification of 
the tree ordinance after this phase is approved.  

3 of 12



Page 3 of 3              June 23, 2025 Planning Commission Minutes 

 

 
Steinfeld motion, Swanson second to recommend City Council approve the entire proposed ordinance 
revisions including the modifications made today. All ayes; motion passed. 

 
5.2. 2026 – 2035 Capital Investment Program (CIP) 
Honey stated that there were no requests from any committees or commissions for this CIP. The only new 
request was from staff for a light at the top of the steps at City Hall for safety. The other change from last 
year’s approved CIP was an update to the cost for the library roof ($4,038) and City Hall roof ($22,833). 
 
Honey explained that the CIP is the first part of the budget process for items over $5,000, but less than 
what would require bonding. The City prefers to keep the CIP at $200,000 for more level tax levies. The 
review committee usually reviews the CIP request but because there were so few changes this year, the 
committee did not need to meet. The Planning Commission oversees this process to make sure all requests 
comply with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

Swanson motion, Steinfeld second to recommend that City Council approve the 2026 – 2035 Capital 
Improvement Program as presented. All ayes; motion passed. 
 

6. Reports 
6.1. Chair Report – Breazeale thanked Scott Gamble for leading the tree preservation ordinance work 

group and amendments, keeping everything organized and sharing the workload. There was 
discussion about changing the meeting time to 6pm but they decided to keep them at 7pm mainly 
due to public hearings.  

6.2. Commissioner Reports – no reports 
6.3. Council Liaison – Halverson reported on the Council meeting. Jim Lundberg from the LMCC is retiring 

to help the LMCC afford to stay in business longer. A resident requested a streetlight at Old County 
Road at a dark intersection and bus stop. It was approved and will be reviewed again in January. A 
resident requested a speed bump on Huntington Pt Rd W and speed data was collected. Staff will 
check with the resident to see if he still thinks there is a problem now that a nearby construction 
project is completed. If he does, a speed bump will be installed. The City continues to seek funding for 
infrastructure projects.   

6.4. Building Permit Report – received and filed. Add Home Sales to future meeting packets. 
There was a question about 2669 Woodbridge which shows up as a pending sale online. The City does 
not know anything about this. The property needs to access water and sewer through easements and 
the previous owner, who owned both parcels at the time, did not provide the necessary easements 
prior to its sale.  

 

7. Adjournment 
 
Swanson motion, Steinfeld second to adjourn. All ayes; motion passed.  
 
Chair Breazeale adjourned the meeting at 7:52 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC IN ATTENDANCE – Fred and Signe Koehler 
 
Minutes respectfully submitted by City Administrator Heidi Honey 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Heidi Honey, City Administrator 

4 of 12



5.5.4 Additional Specific Standards for Certain Accessory Uses 
S. Swimming Pool (above ground) 

(1) The maximum height for an above ground swimming pool is eight (8) feet measured from the 
average ground level to the top of the pool railing. 
(2) The maximum height for pool equipment shall be five (5) feet above the proposed grade.  
(3) All pool equipment shall be located in an inconspicuous location and be screened from 
adjacent property. 
(4) All above-ground swimming pools shall adhere to the following safety standards: 

(a) The pool shall be equipped with an automatically retractable type ladder, a retractable 
ladder, a removable ladder, or shall be fenced in accordance with the requirements for a 
below-ground swimming pool as outlined in Section 5.5.4(T). 
(b) If a ladder is used for safety purposes, the ladder must be removed or retracted when 
the pool is not being attended. 
(c) If access to the pool is via a deck or porch, then no access from the ground is 
permitted to the deck area unless the property or the ground access to the deck is fenced 
in accordance with the requirements for a below-ground swimming pool as outlined in 
Section 5.5.4(T). 

(5) It shall be the responsibility of the property owner to maintain all implemented safety devices 
in good operating condition. Failure to maintain safety devices, fences, failure to have gates 
closed or failure to remove or retract the ladder access to the pool when unattended shall 
constitute a violation of the Zoning Ordinance and is subject to the remedies and penalties 
outlined in Section 1.13.5 of this ordinance. 

T. Swimming Pool (below ground) 
(1) The maximum height for a below ground swimming pool is one (1) foot above the proposed 
grade. 
(2) The maximum height for pool equipment shall be five (5) feet above the proposed grade.  
(3) All pool equipment shall be located in an inconspicuous location and be screened from 
adjacent property. 
(4) Walkways around below ground swimming pools shall be limited to four (4) feet in width.  
(5) All below ground swimming pools shall include one of the following safety barriers:  

(a) Safety fence. The swimming pool shall be completely enclosed by a non-climbable 
type fence. All fence openings or points of entry into the pool area shall be equipped with 
gates. The fence and gates shall be at least four (4) feet in height and shall be 
constructed of a minimum number eleven gauge woven wire mesh corrosion-resistant 
material or other material approved by the building official. All gates shall be equipped 
with self-closing and self-latching devices placed at the top of the gate or otherwise be 
inaccessible to small children. All fence posts shall be decay or corrosion resistant and 
shall be set in concrete bases or other suitable protection. The openings between the 
bottom of the fence and the ground or other surface shall not be more than four (4) 
inches. Fences shall be identified on the survey or site plan submitted with the building 
permit application. 
(b) Automatic (powered) safety pool cover. Automatic pool covers shall meet the 
standards of F1346-91 of the American Society of Testing and Materials (ASTM), as such 
standards may be modified, superseded or replaced by ASTM. Manually assembled or 
positioned safety pool covers shall not suffice as a required pool barrier. It shall be the 
responsibility of the building permit applicant and property owner to submit materials 
ensuring compliance with the ASTM standards for an automatic pool cover prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. Compliance with the ASTM standards shall be shown with 
the building permit application for the pool. 
(c) Hot Tubs, spas, jacuzzies, or other similar facilities that do not have safety fencing in 
accordance with 5.5.4(T)(5)(a) above shall have a manual cover in place when not in 
use. 

(6) It shall be the responsibility of the property owner to maintain all pool covers, fences, gates 
and closure devices in good operating condition. Failure to maintain pool covers, fences, or 
failure to have gates closed shall constitute a violation of the Zoning Ordinance and is subject to 
the remedies and penalties outlined in Section 1.13.5 of this ordinance. 

Formatted: Font: Bold

5 of 12



                                           

 

 

CITY OF THE VILLAGE OF MINNETONKA BEACH, MINNESOTA 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 159, 2nd Series 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY CODE APPENDIX A – ZONING 

ORDINANCE, SECTION 5.5.4. ACCESSORY USE STANDARDS SECTION (T). 

SWIMMING POOL  

 

The city council of the City of the Village of Minnetonka Beach ordains as follows: 

 

Section 1.  Section 5.5.4: Additional Specific Standards for Certain Accessory Uses of 

Appendix A - Zoning of the City Code is amended by adding the double underlined 

language as follows: 

 
5.5.4. Additional Specific Standards for Certain Accessory Uses 

T.(5)(c) Hot tubs, spas, jacuzzies, or other similar facilities that do not have 

safety fencing in accordance with 5.5.4(T)(5)(a) above shall have a manual 

cover in place when not in use. 

 

 

 

Section 2.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately following 

adoption and publication as required by law.  

 

Adopted by the city council of the City of the Village of Minnetonka Beach this 6th day of 

October, 2025. Published in the Laker Pioneer October 11, 2025. Effective date October 

12, 2025. 

       ____________________________ 

       Joe Pagano, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

____________________________ 

Jane Burgess, City Clerk 

6 of 12



7 of 12



8 of 12



9 of 12



10 of 12



​Planning Commission and Park Commission Joint Meeting Summary​
​Date: September 11, 2025​

​The Planning Commission Tree Protection Ordinance Work Group​​(TPO)​​and three Park Commission​
​members met on September 11 to brainstorm ideas to inspire broader resident support for our​
​community's tree canopy and related green assets.​

​Attendees: Jeff Breazeale, Scott Gamble, Bridget Wortman, Kim Petersen, Jolynn Gamble, Laura​
​Paine, Heidi Honey, Jane Burgess​

​Meeting Context & Purpose​

​●​ ​The Planning Commission is currently revising the City's Tree Protection Ordinance, focusing​
​on simplifying the code and incorporating resident feedback collected in summer 2025.​

​●​ ​Minnetonka Beach City Council asked the Planning Commission to recommend ways to​
​inspire broader public support for tree protection and preservation. Recognizing that the​
​Parks Commission is already leading similar efforts, MB City Council asked the Planning​
​Commission Tree Protection Ordinance Work Group (TPO) to collaborate with the Park​
​Commission and propose a “Big Idea” that can rally community-wide support for our green​
​infrastructure.​

​●​ ​Mayor Joe expressed interest in exploring broader sustainability initiatives and potentially​
​incorporating this work into the upcoming Comprehensive Plan update — the city’s guiding​
​policy document that informs all related codes and ordinances.​

​Brainstorming Highlights​

​The group spent about 30 minutes generating ideas to engage, inspire and educate residents:​

​●​ ​Pursue​​Tree City USA​​designation, with active resident​​involvement​
​●​ ​Promote​​Tree Trust​​programs offering low-cost trees​​for residents​
​●​ ​Resident home certification program.   (Jeff’s example about his parent’s Maine community)​
​●​ ​Invite Manual Jordan, City Arborist, to participate in community clean-ups to educate​

​residents on the importance of the forest floor and Emerald Ash Borer (EAB) management​
​●​ ​Continuing to partner with resident and WRC Board member Susan Carlson, Junior Civic and​

​the Wildlife Rehabilitation Center of Minnesota (WRC), the largest wildlife hospital and​
​rehabilitation center in the U.S. WRC is a registered 501(c)(3) nonprofit organization located in​
​Roseville. Visit​​wrcmn.org​​for more information. Explain​​the “why” of what do birds need once​
​they have been released​

​●​ ​Plant ceremonial trees during park clean-up events: "Clean for today, plant for tomorrow";​
​Make it a recognition event​

​●​ ​Elevate the community education and inspire residents to “ownership” bringing together​
​private and public to support our community tree canopy​

11 of 12

https://www.arborday.org/our-work/tree-city-usa
https://treetrust.org/
http://wrcmn.org/


​●​ ​Create a game-style educational checklist for families, with prizes available at city hall for​
​those who complete it​

​●​ ​Dedicate a recurring environmental column in the Beachcomber, featuring educational​
​content, encouragement, and resident-submitted articles.  Make it interesting and engaging​
​“Did you know?”​

​●​ ​Top benefits of maintaining and expanding the tree canopy:​
​■​ ​Reduces runoff and erosion (protects lakes and water quality)​
​■​ ​Reduces air pollution​
​■​ ​Lowers temperatures in summer​
​■​ ​Increases property values​
​■​ ​Supports mental well-being​
​■​ ​Provides habitat for birds and wildlife​
​■​ ​Emphasize tree canopy health through diversity of species, age, and size​

​●​ ​Increase intentionality of communicating efforts by city to re-plant and plant trees on public​
​spaces for example; EAB and tree removal/reforestation at city swim beach, trail, and the​
​water treatment plant.​

​●​ ​Start by expanding what we are already doing and bring residents along on the journey at a​
​pace that inspires and promotes community involvement.​

​Minnetonka Beach Park Commission Mission Statement Revision​

​We discussed updating the committee’s mission statement to better reflect an expanded scope that​
​includes tree canopy, biodiversity, and sustainability. This would clarify our role and serve as a​
​guiding document for future initiatives.​

​Current​
​“To Protect, Maintain and Improve the parks and public lands of the City of Minnetonka Beach for​
​the safe use and enjoyment of its residents.”​

​Revision​
​“To Protect, Maintain, Restore and ensure Safety of our parks, shorelines, and forests while inspiring​
​residents to be stewards in their own yards—together growing a living legacy for future​
​generations.”​

​Next Steps​

​●​ ​The Park Commission is scheduled to discuss the content above at the October and​
​November meeting, brainstorm and develop a preliminary recommendation for City Council​

​●​ ​Park Commissioners present at the September 11th meeting, in partnership with the Planning​
​Commission Planning Commission Tree Protection Ordinance Work Group (TPO), will present​
​a refined recommendation to MB City Council in January or February 2026.​

12 of 12


	1. September 29 2025 Planning Commission Agenda
	4. 06 June 23 2025 Planning Minutes
	4.1. 5.5.4 - Swimming Pools
	4.1. Ord. No. 159 Amending City Code Appendix A Section 5.5.4. Hot tubs 9.29.2025
	5.1. Short term rentals email
	6.1. Planning and Parks Joint Meeting Summary - Google Docs



